
BOARD OF APPEALS STAFF 
John Tate, Chairman Deborah L. Bell, Planning and Zoning Director 
Marsha Hopkins, Vice-Chairman  Deborah Sims, Zoning Administrator 
Bill Beckwith  Maria Binns, Zoning Coordinator  
Brian Haren E. Allison Ivey Cox, County Attorney
Kyle McCormick 

AGENDA  
Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals 
Fayette County Administrative Complex 

Public Meeting Room 
December 15, 2025 

7:00 P.M. 

*Please turn off or turn to mute all electronic devices during the
Zoning Board of Appeals Meetings 

1. Call to Order.

2. Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Approval of Agenda.

4. Consideration of the Minutes of the Meeting held on November 24, 2025.

PUBLIC HEARING 

5. Consideration of Petition No. A-907-25 – Michael Edward Newman and Billie Gail
Newman, as Trustees of the Mike and Billie Newman Living Trust. Applicants are 
requesting the following: Variance to Sec. 110-242(h). – A-R, requesting an illegal lot to 
be deemed a legal nonconforming lot. The subject property is located in Land Lots 31 of the 7th 
District and fronts Nelms Road. 

6. Consideration of the Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals 2026 Calendar Schedule.



 Minutes 11/24/2025 

Page 1 
Draft 

THE FAYETTE COUNTY ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS met on November 24, 
2025, at 7:00 P.M. in the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall 
Avenue West, Fayetteville, Georgia. 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  John Tate, Chairman      
Marsha Hopkins, Vice-Chairman 
Bill Beckwith 
Brian Haren 
Kyle McCormick 

STAFF PRESENT: Debbie Bell, Planning and Zoning Director 
Deborah Sims, Zoning Administrator 
E. Allison Ivey Cox, County Attorney
Maria Binns, Zoning Secretary

1. Call to Order. Chairman John Tate called the November 24, 2025, meeting to
order at 7:00 pm.

2. Pledge of Allegiance. Chairman John Tate offered the invocation and led the
audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Approval of Agenda. Bill Beckwith made a motion to approve the agenda. Brian
Haren seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

4. Consideration of the Minutes of the Meeting held on October 27, 2025. Vice -
Chairman Marsha Hopkins made the motion to approve the minutes of the
meeting held on October 27, 2025. Brian Haren seconded the motion. The
motion passed unanimously.

PUBLIC HEARING 

5. Consideration of Petition No. A-908-25 – Martha DeLeon and Juan Castillo
Sanchez, Owners. Applicants are requesting the following: Variance to Sec. 110-
137.(d)(b). – R-40, Requesting a variance to the minimum lot width for a legal
nonconforming lot, to allow a lot that is 100’ wide to be eligible for development.
The subject property is located in Land Lots 70 of the 5th District and fronts Corner of
Tributary Way and Price Road.

Ms. Deborah Sims presented the petition above, stating a variance is being
requested to reduce the minimum lot width for a legal nonconforming from 125 feet
to 100 feet to be eligible for development, located south of the city limits, and it has
been in that configuration since 1969, has no road frontage on Tributary Way, only
on Price Road.  Ms. Sims showed the maps and the plat with the one hundred foot
wide measurement, and stated staff recommended approval.



ZBA Meeting 
11/24/2025 
Page 2 

Ms. Celia Castillo, Daughter and representative of the applicants, stated that 
they wanted to build a house on that lot and was already that size before the owners 
purchased but they weren’t aware of it.  

Chairman John Tate asked if anyone else in the audience was in support of 
the petition; with no response, he then asked if anyone was in opposition of the 
petition. No one responded. Chairman Tate brought the item back to the Board for 
questions. 

Mr. Brian Haren asked if the lot is one hundred feet wide, what were the 
buffers and setbacks for R-40 zoning? 

Ms. Sims responded to its fifteen feet from each side, forty feet front, and 
thirty on the rear. A few years ago, they legally rezoned it from A-R to R-40. Ms. 
Sims added that there is no road frontage on Tributary Way and that there will be a 
fifteen foot side yard setback.  

Mr. Haren commented the property, its surrounded by odd cutouts. 

Ms. Sims stated that when they developed the subdivision, they carefully 
developed around this parcel. 

Chairman John Tate made a motion to APPROVE Petition No. A-908- 25. Brian Haren 
seconded the motion. The motion carried 5-0.    

6. Consideration of Petition No. A-909-25 – James Zacheri Richardson and Louis R.
Richardson. Applicants are requesting the following: Variance to Sec. 110-
137(d)(6), to reduce the side yard setback from 15 feet to 14.6 feet to allow a new
accessory structure to encroach into the side yard setback. The subject property is
located in Land Lots 189 of the 5th District and fronts Hickory Road.
Ms. Sims read the variance description above and stated that the structure of 1,800 square
feet was constructed on a slab, applicants were requested to obtain a foundation survey
showing the correct encroachment.

Ms. Zacheri James stated hired the professionals, and they made a minor mistake, 
and she would not like to be blamed for it.  

Mr. Grady Richardson, son. He talked about the measurements where the shed is 
located, and he apologized to the Board for the surveyor’s mistake. 

Mr. Bill Beckwith commented that this was a minor mistake, and he would like to 
vote in favor of the petition.  

Bill Beckwith made a motion to APPROVE Petition A-909-25. Brian Haren 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  



ZBA Meeting 
11/24/2025 
Page 3 

7. Consideration of Petition A-910-25 - Amanda McFarlin Scarbrough, Owner, is
requesting a Variance to Sec. 110-125(d)(1)- A-R., as allowed under Sec. 110-
242(c)(1)- To the minimum lot size for a legal nonconforming lot, to allow a lot that
is 3.94 acres in the A-R zoning district to be eligible for development. The subject
property is located in Land Lots 247 of the 4th District and fronts Goza Road, Hills Bridge
Road and South Highway 92.

Ms. Sims explained that this is a lot of record, being A-R and containing only 3.94
acres, so they can build a house on this property. She stated has a minimum of
environmental concern but nothing else, that will impact the development.

Mr. Sean Murphy, Agent, being on behalf of the applicant, stated that on 
this property, they formerly lived, and he believed a storm damaged the house, 
becoming a problem, and it was demolished for safety and hazard, and now no one 
will buy it unless they know it can be built on it.  

Chairman John Tate asked if anyone else was in support or opposition of the 
petition, with no response, the chairman brought the item back to the Board for 
comments or questions. 

Mr. Haren asked the staff if this was a legal nonconforming lot before? 

Ms. Sims responded that it was a legal nonconforming lot, it is a lot of 
record if they would it kept the previous house there, they wouldn’t require a 
variance but now that the house has been removed, we need to ask for the variance 
so the new house can be built. She stated the applicant could rezone to a three acre 
lot following the land use plan but they would like to keep it as A-R, which is less 
intensively used and might want to have goats.    

Mr. Haren asked what is legal lot? And if it was a house previously there? 

Ms. Sims responded the lot is undeveloped non-conforming lot, and as long as 
a house is not there, they can proceed with the variance and they might be able to 
sell it knowing the new owners will be able to build on it.   

Mr. Bill Beckwith asked staff if there was enough buildable land, counting 
setbacks and buffers? 

Mr. Sims responded she believes there is, once the variance gets approved, 
applicants will have to present plans for review. 

Mr. Kyle McCormick asked if it would be a better option to rezone to three 
acre lots? 

Mr. Sims responded that staff would recommend allowing it to stay A-R by 
having more flexibility than to rezone to any other residential zoning. She stated 



ZBA Meeting 
11/24/2025 
Page 4 

Staff is recommending approval. 
Mr. Haren commented that if the new purchaser wants to later rezone, let 

them approach that. 

Brian Haren made a motion to APPROVE Petition A-910-25. Kle McCormick 
seconded the motion. The motion carried 5-0 

8. Consideration of Petition A-911-25. - Donnese Cannady, Donnette Cannady, and
Eddie Cannady Stokes F/K/A Eddie Mae Cannady. Applicants are requesting the
following: Per Sec. 110-125(d)(1)- in the A-R zoning, as allowed under Sec. 110-
242(c)(1)- A variance to the minimum lot size for a legal nonconforming lot, to
allow a lot that is 1.22 acres in the A-R zoning district to be eligible for
development. The property is located in Land Lots 232 of the 5th District and fronts the
Corner of Old Road and Butler Road.

Ms. Sims read the variance information above and stated that the lot has changed 
configuration because of the donation of Right-Out-Way in 1987 on Buttler Road and again in 
2006 along Old Road, bringing the property to 1.22 acres for A-R zoning. She stated the lot 
might have additional variance, but it first needs to be converted into a nonconforming lot. 

Chairman Tate asked if the petitioner was present? 

Ms. Donnese Cannady stated they have another house on the same street and would like 
for the Board to approve their variance for this new lot. 

Mr. Bill Beckwith asked staff how, in that year, someone would subdivide that many 
small lots being zoned A-R? 

Ms. Bell responded that it was subdivided prior to the zoning, and when they applied 
zoning laws to the Fayette County, more around Court of Fayetteville where zoned residential 
and commercial and any other that didn’t have a designation became A-r (Agricultural- 
Residential). 

Ms. Sims commented that they never applied to rezone stated that way since the 
beginning. The family already lives in that neighborhood. 

Mr. Bill Beckwith asked staff if this was part of the blanket rezoning around the county? 

Ms. Sims responded that it was not part of that blanket rezoning, and she doesn’t know 
how this particular subdivision stayed A-R with lots less than the acreage required for that type 
of zoning. 

       Mr. Brian Haren commented was concerned about the lot not having enough 
land to be built on it, but based on how these lots were zoned he would support a rezoning. 

Chairman John Tate made a motion to APPROVE Petition No. A-911-25. Vice-
Chairman Marsha Hopkins seconded the motion. The motion. 



ZBA Meeting 
11/24/2025 
Page 5 

9. Consideration of Petition A-912-25. – Michael Newman, Owner. Staff are
requesting a motion to table Petition A-912-25 until January 26, 2026, pending the
outcome of Petition No. A-907-25, which was tabled to December 15, 2025.

Ms. Sims stated staff is requested to table this petition since the last meeting 
was requested that petition A-907-25 (Parent petition) was tabled to December 15, 
will need to be heard first and then come back to this Board to hear petition A-912-
25.   

No comments were addressed by the Board. 

Chairman John Tate made a motion to TABLE Petition No. A-912-25 to the January 26, 
2026, Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting. Bill Beckwith seconded the motion. The motion 
passed unanimously. 

10. Consideration of Petition A-913-25. - Lauri Kallen Culp Maselli, Vincent Michael
Maselli, David Alana Albee Jr. and Patricia Marie Albee, Owners. Applicants are
requesting a Variance to Sec. 110-125(d)(6).- A-R Zoning, to reduce the side yard
setback from 50 feet to 31 feet to allow an accessory structure to be built. The
property is located in Land Lots 94 and 95 of the 4th District and fronts Morgan Mill Road.

Ms. Sims read the petition above and stated the house was built before 
foundation surveys were required, applicants want to build a new detached 
garage and they found the encroachment.  

Ms. Lauri Culp Maselli stated that her parents bought the house four years 
ago and didn’t know that it was so close to the side yards and asked the board for 
approval of the petition. 

Chairman asked if anyone wanted to speak in support or opposition of the 
petition, with no response, he brought the item back to the board. 

Mr. Bill Beckwith refers to a dimension of forty feet shown on the plan? 

Ms. Sims stated she scale that measurement on Blue Bean but she showed a 
surveyor’s certification with the exact measurement of thirty one feet. 

Mr. Debie Bell responded at times when it’s a single dimension like this 
one, staff will request that a surveyor locate the property line, structures and 
certify the measurements so the property owner doesn’t have to fully pay for a 
survey. 

Ms. Sims commented the county did not require foundation surveys until 
2006, and this was built thirty years ago with the wrong measurements.  

Mr. Brian Haren asked what this accessory structure is used for? 



ZBA Meeting 
11/24/2025 
Page 6 

Ms. Sims responded  that was actually part of the house, they did an 
addition and it's thirty one feet, and they are requesting now to build another 
building at front which is allowed since their zoning is A-R. 

Mr. Haren commented that this case is an example where the homeowner 
tried to do the right thing and found out it is not in the right place. 

Mr. Beckwith commented he disagreed with Mr. Haren said, we see some of 
this things happened and is not the property owner's fault, the house has been 
there for almost thirty years and move to a motion. 

Bill Beckwith made a motion to APPROVE Petition A-913-25. Brian Haren 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

11. Consideration of Petition A-914-15. – Flat Creek Baptist Church Inc., Owner.
Requesting a Variance to the Flat Creek Trail Overlay Zone requirement to omit the
requirement for a pitched peaked or mansard roof. Per Sec. 110-173(6)(b)(1). -
Architectural Standards, to be replaced by a parapet wall consistent with other
buildings on the site.

Ms. Sims read the petition above and stated Flat Creek church has been in 
our community for many years and has expanded to add additional land along 
Highway 54, they had previously was review and approved, but by them been in the 
Flat Creek Trail overlay zoned and Hwy 54 overlay zoned there are architectural 
standards for non residential developments and that why they are requesting a 
variance for a pitched peaked (gable or hip) roof type on the southside of the 
campus. Applicant sent a concept plan that Ms. Sims showed to the Board.  

Ms. Debbe Bell explained that on the concept plans, they also have a 
building that will replace the chapel but the actual request is for the brick building, 
which will not have the gable roof that will be a classroom. 

Mr. Joe Hogan, member of Flat Creek, stating staff covered cover 
everything well and he mentioned there is already another building being a children 
classroom and this new building will mirror that. All the mechanical equipment will 
be on top of the roof and will not wanted to show that and they are requesting this 
variance to cover that. 

Chairman John Tate asked if anyone in the audience was in support or 
opposed to the petition, but no one responded. He brought the item back to the 
board for questions or comments. 

Mr. Beckwith asked staff to show the aerial of the property and asked what 
is the width of the Overlay Zone, Highway 54? 

Ms. Bell responded that it doesn’t specify width, but in this case, the new 



ZBA Meeting 
11/24/2025 
Page 7 

building will be visible from Flat Creek on the north side. She stated don’t know 
why they implemented. 

Mr. Brian Haren stated that he knew, he helped write it and said that Flat 
Creek was a feeder road and the expectation was will go O-I (Office) and piedmont 
when a head and start to built stuffs and controlling how doctors offices will look. 
The intent was never to control the look and feeling of a campus and he believes fits 
the original intent and he will support this request. 

Mr. Beckwith commented that the overlay zone does not identify specific 
buildings but specific types of uses? 

Mr. Haren responded If a parcel goes aligned, how do we want it to look? 
And this is a church campus, and we knew a church fell out of it, and here we are 
addressing it. 

Mr. Beckwith responded that a church should look like a church, because it's 
already there.  

Mr. Kyle McCormick asked staff it looked like the parapet building are on 
the other side of the building, is that correct? 

Ms. Bell showed the aerial map and said it is in the central/eastern part of 
the property and this new building will be on the north/central side where the chapel 
just to be and will be consisting with the other buildings.   

Mr. Haren asked if the church owns all that parcel down to Highway 54? 

Mr. Hogan responded yes.  

Chairman John Tate made a motion to APPROVE Petition A-914-25. Brian 
Haren seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 ***************** 

Brian Haren moved to adjourn the November 24, 2025, Zoning Board of Appeals meeting. 
Chairman John Tate seconded the motion. The motion carried 5-0.  

The meeting adjourned at 8:01 pm. 



ZBA Meeting 
11/24/2025 
Page 8 

 

 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
                             OF  
                                                  FAYETTE COUNTY 

                                                                                                
 
                                                                                                
                                                                                               

              JOHN TATE, CHAIRMAN                                      
 

                                                                      _ 
DEBORAH BELL 
DIRECTOR, PLANNING & ZONING  



pg. 1 A-907-25

PETITION NO:  A-907-25 

Requested Action:   To approve an illegal lot to be deemed a legal, nonconforming lot, per Sec. 110-
242(h). 

Location:  Nelms Road, Fayetteville, GA 30215 

Parcel(s): 0701 063 

District/Land Lot(s):  7th District, Land Lot(s) 31 

Zoning:   A-R, Agricultural-Residential 

Lot Size:   4.78  Acres 

Owner(s):  Michael Edward Newman and Billie Gail Newman, as Trustees of the Mike and Billie 
Newman Living Trust 

Agent:   Jason Newman 

Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  December 15, 2025 at 7:00 PM,  Tabled from the Zoning 
Board of Appeals Hearing on October 27, 2025.    

REQUEST 

Applicant is requesting the following: 

1. Per Sec. 110-242(h), requesting an illegal lot to be deemed a nonconforming lot.

STAFF ASSESSMENT 

This parcel DOES MEET all the criteria outlined in Sec. 110-242(h). Please refer to criteria and 
justification on Page 3 for full details. 

(1) The subject property was made illegal by actions of a previous owner via a plat recorded 29
April 1986, Plat Book 16, Page 181, which was MORE THAN 10 YEARS AGO. The plat was for
Redwine Quarters, Phase I, and while it did not specifically include this parcel, it created
this parcel as a remnant.

(2) The petitioner IS NOT a person, or an immediate family member of that person, who
caused the subject property to be an illegal lot.

(3) As defined in Sec. 110-242(h)(3), THERE IS NOT PROPERTY AVAILABLE to add to this lot to
transform it into a legal lot. The reduction in area of any of the adjacent lots would cause
said lot(s) to be illegal in size, road frontage, or lot area.



pg. 2 A-907-25

HISTORY 

The property is an illegal lot because it is zoned A-R but has less than 5 acres and was created 
after Nov. 13, 1980. It is a remnant parcel created by the recordation of a plat under a 
previous owner. A plat for Redwine Quarters, Phase I, recorded in Plat Book 16 Page 181, on 
29 April 1986 left this parcel as a remnant. 

 • At the ZBA hearing on 10/27/2025, an opposition resident stated there were unpermitted 
uses in the property.  

 • The ZBA tabled the petition to the next advertisable date, December 15, 2025, to allow staff 
time to assess the issues and review with the applicant.

DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS 

 Water System – No comments.  
 Public Works – No objections to the minimum lot size request. 
 Environmental Management – No objections to the minimum lot size request. However, this 

does not guarantee that the lot will be eligible for a building permit as buildable area is 
reduced due to floodplain and riparian buffers. Floodplain delineation will be required for a 
building permit. Prior to issuance of building permits, the owner will be required to locate 
wetlands, creeks, and produce a flood certificate.  

 Environmental Health Department – This office has no objection to the proposed minimum 

lot size request. However, this does not constitute approval of future use, structures, or septic 
capabilities. The minimum lot size for a property on septic and well is 43,560 square feet. The 
following land areas are not considered as a part of a lot when calculating the required 
minimum lot size: right of ways of roads, easements (such as power line or pipe line) that 
exclude installation of an on-site sewage management system, soil conditions that exclude 
the installation of an on-site sewage management system, bodies of water, land within 50 feet 
of a lake, river, stream, wetland or other bodies of water and similar limiting factors. 

 Department of Building Safety – No objections. 
 Fire – No comments. 



pg. 3 A-907-25

ZONING REQUIREMENTS 

Article VII.-Zoning Board of Appeals 

Sec. 110-242. - Powers and duties. 

(h) Request for an illegal lot to be deemed a nonconforming lot. The zoning board of appeals may deem,
upon appeal in specific cases, an illegal lot which is smaller than the minimum lot size for its zoning
district, more narrow than the minimum lot width for its zoning district or has less road frontage
than is required for its zoning to be a nonconforming lot. The zoning board of appeals shall employ
the following factors for an illegal lot seeking to be deemed a nonconforming lot:

(1) The transaction giving the appellant/petitioner ownership in the subject property was
more than five years from the date of the appeal/petition or if the period of ownership is
less than five years the subject property was made illegal more than ten years from the
date of the appeal/petition;

The subject property was made illegal by actions of a previous owner via a plat 
recorded 29 April 1986, Plat Book 16, Page 181, which was MORE THAN 10 YEARS 
AGO. The plat was for Redwine Quarters, Phase I, and while it did not specifically 
include this parcel, it created this parcel as a remnant. 

(2) The appellant/petitioner is not the person, or an immediate family member of the
person, who caused the subject property to be an illegal lot. For purposes of these
procedures, "immediate family" is defined as the spouse, child, sibling, parent, step-child,
step-sibling, step-parent, grandparent, grandchild, aunt, uncle, niece or nephew of the
person who caused the subject property to be an illegal lot; and

As defined above, the petitioner IS NOT the person, or an immediate family member 
of the person, who caused the subject property to be an illegal lot. 

(3) No adjacent property is available to add to the subject property to allow the subject
property to meet the minimum requirements for its zoning district. In determining whether
adjacent property is available, if adding any adjacent property to the subject property
would no longer allow the adjacent property to meet the minimum requirements of the
adjacent property's zoning district, then the adjacent property is not available. Additionally,
any adjacent property which is part of an illegal lot shall not be deemed available for
purposes of these variance procedures, unless the adjacent illegal lot is unimproved and
the entirety of the adjacent illegal lot is combined with the subject property. If adjacent
property is available, the cost of acquiring the adjacent property shall not be a factor in
determining the availability of the adjacent property.

 As defined above, there IS NOT property available to add to this lot to transform it 
into a legal lot. The reduction in area of any of the adjacent lots would cause that 
lot to be illegal in size, road frontage, or lot area. 



pg. 4 A-907-25



 pg. 5 A-907-25 



 pg. 6 A-907-25 

 
 
 



 pg. 7 A-907-25 

 
 
 



 pg. 8 A-907-25 

 

 
SURVEY 

 
 
 

 



A-907-25

X

October 27, 2025

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle



mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle















 

2026 Hearing Schedule for Zoning Board of Appeals – Rev. 12/2025    Page 1 of 1 

 

  
Fayette County, Georgia 

140 Stonewall Avenue West, Suite 202, Fayetteville, GA 30214 

The deadline is 12:00 PM (Noon) on the first day of the month prior to the month of the meeƟng. Variance applicaƟons 
require a public hearing held on the fourth Monday of the month before the Zoning Board of Appeals. The MeeƟng 
Schedule reflects adjustments for holidays.  The public hearing is held at the FayeƩe County AdministraƟve Complex at 
Stonewall (located at the southwest corner of SR 54 and SR 85 in downtown FayeƩeville) on the first floor in the Public 
MeeƟng Room (near the fountain) and hearings begin at 7:00 p.m.  

 

APPLICATION DEADLINES     ZBA MEETING DATES 

December 1, 2025      January 26, 2026 

January 2, 2026      February 23, 2026 

February 6, 2026      March 23, 2026 

March 6, 2026      April 27, 2026 

April 3, 2026        May 26, 2026* 

May 1, 2026        June 22, 2026 

June 5, 2026        July 27, 2026 

July 3, 2026        August 24, 2026 

August 7, 2026      September 28, 2026 

September 4, 2026      October 26, 2026 

October 2, 2026      November 23, 2026 

November 4, 2026*       December 14, 2026* 

December 4, 2026      January 25, 2027 

 

*Dates are adjusted for Holiday meeting schedules and newspaper advertising deadlines.  

 






